1	Corey Evans, CA Bar No. 218789				
2	GENEVA PAGE, CA Bar No. 235633				
2	Evans & Page				
3	One Market Street				
4	Spear Tower				
7	Suite 3600 San Francisco, C.A. 94105				
5	Ball Plancisco, C.A. 94103				
6	KATHERINE A. MEYER, D.C. Bar No. 244301				
7	TANYA SANERIB, D.C. Bar No. 473506				
7	MEYER GLITZENSTEIN & CRYSTAL				
8	1601 Connecticut Ave. N.W., Suite 700 Washington, D.C. 20009				
9	(202) 588.5206 (phone)				
,	(202) 588.5049 (fax)				
10					
11	Attorneys for plaintiffs Rebecca Cary, Debbie Boban, Misti Schmidt, Marcia Slackman, The Humane Society of the United States, Defenders of Wildlife, Kimya Institute, and Born Free USA				
12					
13		S DISTRICT COURT			
	FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA				
14					
15	REBECCA ANN CARY,				
1.0	3608 Reposo Way,				
16	Belmont, CA 94002,				
17	DEBRA JOAN BOBAN,	COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY			
18	8003 Kelok Way,	AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF			
	Clayton, CA 94517,				
19		Administrative Procedure Act Case			
20	MISTI MARIE SCHMIDT,)				
21	2635 Hillegass Avenue,				
21	Apartment #5, Berkeley, CA 94704,				
22	bureley, CA 94704,				
23	MARCIA SLACKMAN,				
	490 Pebble Drive,				
24	El Sobrante, CA 94803,				
25	THE HUMANE SOCIETY OF THE				
26	THE HUMANE SOCIETY OF THE UNITED STATES,				
20	5301 Madison Avenue,				
27	Suite 202,				
28	Sacramento, CA 95841,				
	I				

4	\
1	DEFENDERS OF WILDLIFE ,) 926 J Street,)
2	Suite 522,
3	Sacramento, CA 95814,
4	KIMYA INSTITUTE,)
	2320 Palm Avenue,
5	San Mateo, CA 94403
6	BORN FREE USA,
7	2040 Tunlaw Road, N.W.,
8	Washington, D.C. 20007,
9	BILL CLARK,)
	16-B Rehov Eben Shaprut,
10	Rehavia,)
11	Jerusalem 92478,) Israel,)
12)
13	Plaintiffs,)
14	v.) Civ. No.
	<u> </u>
15	DALE HALL, Director, Fish and Wildlife Service,)
16	1849 C Street N.W.,
17	Washington, D.C., 20240,
18	GALE NORTON, Secretary,)
	Department of the Interior,
19	1849 C Street N.W.,
20	Washington, D.C. 20240,
21	Defendants.
22	
23	1. Plaintiffs challenge an unprecedented and highly controversial decision by the
24	United States Fish and Wildlife Service ("FWS" or "Service") to issue a regulation under section
25	10 of the Endangered Species Act ("ESA" or Act), 16 U.S.C. § 1531, et seq., that allows the
26	5 12 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
27	COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY EVANS & PAGE
28	AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 1 Market St., Spear Tower, S. 3600 -2- San Francisco, C.A. 94105

trophy hunting of endangered species, including the "canned hunting" of such species — <u>i.e.</u>, in enclosed areas where the animals cannot escape — on the grounds that allowing such activities will create "economic incentives" for private ranches to breed more of the animals than "may" be useful in the future for reintroducing the species into the wild, even though there currently is no shortage of such animals in captivity at zoos and sanctuaries. The specific regulation involves the highly imperiled scimitar-horned oryx, addax, and dama gazelle — antelopes that are native to the desert and semi-desert regions of northern Africa, that are all on the verge of extinction primarily due to trophy hunting and destruction of their habitat.

2. The new regulation will allow the trophy hunting of antelopes captive-bred in the United States, and the transport and sale of live antelopes, their gametes, and sport-hunted trophies in interstate and foreign commerce – activities that are all otherwise expressly prohibited by section 9 of the ESA, 16 U.S.C. § 1538. The FWS issued this unprecedented regulation in violation of the plain language of the ESA, which only grants the Service the authority to issue permits for activities that will themselves "enhance the propagation or survival of the species," and only on a case-by-case basis after providing the public notice and an opportunity for comment on "each" such application for a permit and after the agency has made certain statutorily mandated findings. 16 U.S.C. § 1539(a), (c), (d). In issuing the regulation the FWS also violated section 7 of the ESA, 16 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2), by failing to "insure" that its actions are "not likely to jeopardize the continued existence" of these endangered species by contributing to the killing and illegal trade in wild animals, and the FWS violated the requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act ("NEPA"), 42 U.S.C. § 4321 et seq., by failing to consider

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

several alternative courses of action, failing to consider certain environmental effects of its action, and failing to prepare an Environmental Impact Statement ("EIS") regarding this extremely novel approach to "conserving" endangered species under the ESA.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. This Court has jurisdiction over this case pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 (federal question). Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(e).

INTRADISTRICT ASSIGNMENT

4. Pursuant to Civil L.R. 3-2(d), assignment is appropriate in the San Francisco or Dakland Divisions because many of the plaintiffs reside in this district and no real property is at assue in this action.

PARTIES

5. Plaintiff Rebecca Cary is a resident of Belmont, California, located in San Mateo County. Ms. Cary is a member of The Humane Society of the United States ("The HSUS"), and has been involved in protecting domestic animals and wildlife since her childhood. She is the founding member of Students Against Animal Suffering ("SAAS"), a student group at the University of California San Diego, which works on wildlife and animals in research issues. To stay informed about animal issues, Ms. Cary reads The HSUS website nearly everyday, and uses it as a valuable resource on animal issues in which she is involved. Ms. Cary disseminates this information to her organization, and SAAS uses this and other HSUS publications, to inform students about current animal issues. In addition, Ms. Cary receives weekly email alerts from The HSUS, which often feature endangered species and other wildlife issues including trophy

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

hunting issues, and which offer HSUS members the opportunity to take action on issues to benefit animals. Ms. Cary often responds to these action alerts. She also uses the information provided by The HSUS to write letters to her Senators and to provide information on these issues to her local newspaper. Ms. Cary also regularly reads The HSUS quarterly newsletter, All Animals, which features stories about, and photographs of, endangered and rare species from around the world, including the endangered dama gazelle.

The FWS's unlawful promulgation of a regulation that permits the direct taking of endangered, scimitar-horned oryx, addax, and dama gazelle, as well as other activities that are otherwise prohibited by section 9 of the ESA, injures Ms. Cary. By creating a blanket exemption from the process mandated by section 10 of the ESA, defendants have violated Ms. Cary's statutory right to obtain the information required for "each" application for a section 10 permit, and have denied her the opportunity to participate in that process, to which she is also entitled under section 10. As a result, Ms. Cary will neither be able to be fully informed or to inform SAAS about information concerning the trophy hunting and canned hunting, transportation, sale, and export of scimitar-horned oryx, addax, and dama gazelle, nor will she have the opportunity to provide information to the FWS concerning such activities. Ms. Cary is also harmed by defendants' actions as a member of The HSUS, because, as a result of the FWS's action, more of ner membership dollars will have to be dedicated to obtaining information on these antelopes, when such information should be made readily available to the public under section 10 of the ESA. Ms. Cary's injuries will be redressed if plaintiffs prevail in this action, because, as a result, the FWS will be required under section 10 of the ESA to publish in the Federal Register each

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

26

27

28

EVANS & PAGE 1 Market St., Spear Tower, S. 3600 San Francisco, C.A. 94105

County, and she is also a member of The HSUS. Ms. Boban has an interest in protecting animal welfare and wildlife, and she is particularly concerned about "canned hunting" – i.e., the "sport" which exotic animals are placed in enclosed areas so they cannot escape and are then shot for their "trophy" heads and other body parts. Ms. Boban has volunteered at a wildlife rehabilitation center near her home, and is a member of many animal protection organizations, in her efforts to protect animals from the adverse impacts of hunting. To stay informed on issues affecting animals, including those that are endangered, Ms. Boban regularly reads The HSUS quarterly newsletter, All Animals, a publication that often features stories about, and photographs of, endangered and rare species from around the world, including the endangered dama gazelle. In addition, Ms. Boban also receives and regularly responds to weekly email alerts from The HSUS, which often feature endangered species and other wildlife issues, and which offer HSUS members the opportunity to take action on issues with consequences for animals. She also regularly reads The HSUS website, which is constantly updated with new information and ways

28

27 COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

8. The FWS's unlawful promulgation of a regulation that permits the direct taking of
endangered, scimitar-horned oryx, addax, and dama gazelle, as well as other activities that are
otherwise prohibited by section 9 of the ESA, injures Ms. Boban. By creating a blanket
exemption from the process mandated by section 10 of the ESA, defendants have violated Ms.
Boban's statutory right to obtain the information required for "each" application for a section 10
permit, and they have denied her the opportunity to participate in that process, to which she is
also entitled under section 10. As a result, Ms. Boban will neither be able to be fully informed
about the trophy hunting and canned hunting, transportation, sale, and export of scimitar-horned
oryx, addax, and dama gazelle, nor will she have the opportunity to provide information to the
FWS concerning such activities. Ms. Boban is also harmed by defendants' actions as a member
of The HSUS, because more of her membership dollars will have to be dedicated to obtaining
information on these antelopes, when such information should be made readily available to the
public under section 10 of the ESA. These injuries will be redressed if plaintiffs prevail in this
action, because, as a result, the FWS will be required under section 10 of the ESA to publish in
the Federal Register each application for an exemption regarding the antelopes, and Ms. Boban
will receive such notice, as well as an opportunity to comment on each such application, and she
will also receive notice of the FWS's "findings" as required by section 10 before the agency
issues any such permit. Such a ruling will also ensure that The HSUS will not have to dedicate
its resources to finding alternative ways to obtain such information.

9. Plaintiff Misti Schmidt is a resident of Berkeley, California, located in Alameda County and she is a member of The HSUS. Ms. Schmidt has been actively involved in

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

1	protecting animals and endangered wildlife for many years. She is also the External Vice					
2	President of the Animal Law Society at the University of California Berkeley where she attends					
3	law school. Her organization frequently distributes information from The HSUS to fellow					
4	students through tabling and emails, and it also sponsors speakers on current animal issues, such					
5						
6	as the illicit trade in wildlife. Last summer, Ms. Schmidt worked on endangered species issues					
7	as an intern, and helped draft and litigate petitions for listing and critical habitat designations. In					
8	order for her and her organization to stay informed on issues affecting animals, including those					
9	that are endangered, Ms. Schmidt receives weekly email alerts from The HSUS, which often					
11	feature endangered species and other wildlife issues, including trophy hunting issues, and which					
12	offer HSUS members the opportunity to take action on issues to benefit animals. Ms. Schmidt					
13	takes action in response to nearly every such alert, including those on wildlife issues. Ms.					
14	Schmidt also receives and reads The HSUS quarterly newsletter, <u>All Animals</u> , which often					
15 16	features stories and photographs of endangered and rare species from around the world, including					
17	the endengered dome compile. Mr. Calemidt recorded to accept The HCHC weeksite, which also					
18	uses as a resource for writing papers and staying informed on current animal issues.					
19	10. The FWS's unlawful promulgation of a regulation that permits the direct taking of					
20	endangered, scimitar-horned oryx, addax, and dama gazelle, as well as other activities that are					
21	otherwise prohibited by section 9 of the ESA, injures Ms. Schmidt. By creating a blanket					
22						
23	exemption from the process mandated by section 10 of the ESA, defendants have violated Ms.					
	Schmidt's statutory right to obtain the information mandated for "each" application for a section					
25	10 permit, and they have denied her the opportunity to participate in that process, to which she is					
26						
2728	COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF EVANS & PAGE 1 Market St., Spear Tower, S. 3600 San Francisco, C.A. 94105					

1	also entitled under section 10. As a result, Ms. Schmidt will neither be able to be fully inform					
2	concerning the trophy hunting and canned hunting, transportation, sale, and export of scimitar-					
3	horned oryx, addax, and dama gazelle, nor will she have the opportunity to provide information					
4 5	to the FWS concerning such activities. Ms. Schmidt is also harmed by defendants' actions as a					
6	member of The HSUS, because more of her membership dollars will have to be dedicated to					
7	obtaining information on these antelopes, when such information should be made readily					
8	available to the public under section 10 of the ESA. These injuries will be redressed if plaintiffs					
9 10	prevail in this action, because, as a result, the FWS will be required under section 10 of the ESA					
11	to publish in the Federal Register each application for an exemption regarding the antelopes, and					
12	Ms. Schmidt will receive such notice, as well as an opportunity to comment on each such					
13	application, and she will also receive notice of the FWS's "findings" as required by section 10					
14	before the agency issues any such permit. Such a ruling will also ensure that The HSUS will not					
15	have to dedicate resources to alternative ways to obtain such information.					
16	11. Plaintiff Marcia Slackman is a resident of El Sobrante, California, located in					
17						
18	Contra Costa County. Ms. Slackman is employed by The HSUS as the Major and Planned Gifts					
	Officer of the West Coast Region, with the responsibility of informing donors about The HSUS's					
20	programs, and facilitating their gifts to The HSUS for its work on animal protection issues. Ms.					
21	Slackman has been involved for many years in protecting both international and domestic					
22	wildlife. She has been active in several California campaigns to protect cougars, bears, and					
23						
24	endangered species in the San Francisco Bay, and has lobbied at the state and federal level, using					
25	information she received from The HSUS. To stay informed on issues affecting animals, and to					
26						
27	COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF EVANS & PAGE 1 Market St., Spear Tower, S. 3600					
28	-9- San Francisco, C.A. 94105					

share this information with potential and current HSUS donors, Ms. Slackman receives weekly email alerts from The HSUS that often feature endangered species and other wildlife issues, including trophy hunting issues. Ms. Slackman regularly informs HSUS's donors about these emails, and she also responds to these action alerts herself. Ms. Slackman also receives, reads, and distributes HSUS newsletters to donors, and she receives numerous internal emails and press releases from The HSUS staff regarding wildlife issues. Ms. Slackman also regularly reads The HSUS website, which is routinely updated with new information on animal issues. She uses the website and HSUS staff as a resource to answer her donors' substantive questions regarding animals and endangered species, and for writing funding proposals.

12. The FWS's unlawful promulgation of a regulation that permits the direct taking of endangered, scimitar-horned oryx, addax, and dama gazelle, as well as other activities that are otherwise prohibited by section 9 of the ESA, injures Ms. Slackman. By creating a blanket exemption from the process mandated by section 10 of the ESA, defendants have violated Ms. Slackman's statutory right to obtain information mandated for "each" application for a section 10 permit, and they have denied her the opportunity to participate in that process, to which she is also entitled under section 10. As a result, Ms. Slackman will neither be able to be fully informed concerning the trophy hunting and canned hunting, transportation, sale, and export of scimitar-horned oryx, addax, and dama gazelle, nor will she have the opportunity to provide information to the FWS concerning such activities. These injuries will be redressed if plaintiffs prevail in this action, because, as a result, the FWS will be required under section 10 of the ESA to publish in the Federal Register each application for an exemption regarding the antelopes, and

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY
AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

Ms. Slackman will receive such notice, as well as an opportunity to comment on each such application, and she will also receive notice of the FWS's "findings" as required by section 10 before the agency issues any such permit.

- 13. Plaintiff The Humane Society of the United States ("The HSUS"), is a non-profit membership organization with over 9 million members and constituents. The HSUS brings this action on its own institutional behalf and on behalf of its members. The HSUS is dedicated to protecting wild and domestic animals by actively opposing those projects, plans, and events that result in the killing or cruel treatment of animals. The HSUS also educates its members and the public about the perils animals regularly face. The HSUS invests considerable resources in its effort to end the trophy hunting of threatened and endangered species in general, and the inhumane practice of canned hunting of threatened and endangered species in particular. The HSUS also works to gain protections for endangered and exploited animals, and it regularly responds to requests for public comments from federal, state, and local governments, and it submits complaints, petitions, and other information regarding endangered and exploited animals to such entities. The HSUS's international branch works to eliminate illegal trade in wildlife and to reduce threats to imperiled species, including by assisting in the development and enforcement of various treaties and international agreements affecting animals and their habitat.
- 14. Essential to this work is The HSUS's ability to obtain information from governments, scientists, and investigators regarding issues affecting animals. Thus, The HSUS routinely gathers information on actions proposed by the U.S. and other governments that affect endangered and threatened animals, and it specifically monitors applications for ESA permits for

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

27

28

exceptions from the statute's prohibitions and for sport hunted trophy imports and other activities. The HSUS also informs its members and the public about proposed governmental actions that would impact endangered and exploited animals through various means, including electronic action alerts, The HSUS website, and various mailings, including its newsletter, and it provides information to and works with, the news media in an effort to further educate the public about these issues. As a result, The HSUS's members routinely comment on such actions.

15. The FWS's unlawful promulgation of a regulation that permits the direct taking of endangered scimitar-horned oryx, addax, and dama gazelle, as well as other activities that are otherwise prohibited by section 9 of the ESA, injures The HSUS and its members. By creating a blanket exemption from the process mandated by section 10 of the ESA, defendants have violated The HSUS's and its members' statutory right to obtain the information mandated for each" application for a section 10 permit, and they have denied The HSUS and its members the opportunity to participate in that process, to which they are also entitled under section 10. As a esult, The HSUS will not be able to be keep its members fully informed concerning the trophy nunting and canned hunting, transportation, sale, and export of scimitar-horned oryx, addax, and dama gazelle for commercial purposes, because defendants are depriving The HSUS of its ability to obtain and disseminate this information through its action alerts, newsletter, and website, and defendants are also depriving The HSUS and its members of the opportunity to provide nformation to the FWS concerning such activities. The HSUS and its members are also harmed by defendant's actions, because The HSUS will have to spend financial and other resources pursuing alternative sources of information regarding actions taken with respect to the antelopes,

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY
AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

when such information should be made readily available to the public under section 10 of the ESA. The HSUS's injuries will be redressed if plaintiffs prevail, because, as a result, the FWS will be required under section 10 of the ESA to publish in the Federal Register each application for an exemption regarding the antelopes, and The HSUS will receive such notice, as well as an opportunity to comment on each such application, and it will also receive notice of the FWS's "findings" as required by section 10 before the agency issues any such permit. Such a ruling will also ensure that The HSUS will not have to dedicate its resources to alternative ways to obtain such information.

16. Plaintiff Defenders of Wildlife ("Defenders") is a national nonprofit organization with more than 480,000 members and supporters across the nation. Defenders brings this action on its own institutional behalf and on behalf of its members. Defenders is dedicated to the protection and restoration of all wild animals and plants in their natural communities. Defenders has invested considerable organizational resources in ensuring that species are listed under the ESA, and that activities undertaken with respect to listed species adhere to the requirements of the Act. Accordingly, Defenders closely follows and regularly comments on applications for permits under the ESA. Defenders also works on international conservation issues involving the commercial exploitation of, and trade in, threatened and endangered wildlife, including by working through a number of multilateral environmental agreements to ensure that policy decisions adequately protect wildlife and biological diversity, and to prevent governments from weakening protections for the global environment.

27 COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY
AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

- 27. Essential to this work is Defenders ability to obtain information from governments, scientists, and investigators regarding these issues. Thus, Defenders regularly obtains information from the U.S. government about proposed actions and policies, and the research and information pertaining to those proposals, that effect endangered species and their habitats, including applications for permits under the ESA. Defenders uses this information to provide comments on, and submit complaints and other information regarding, legislative and administrative agency actions, as well as to keep its members and the public informed about proposals that effect imperiled species, their habitats, and biological diversity. Defenders regularly informs its members and the public about all of these matters, by sending out action alerts by electronic mail, posting information on its website, publishing a newsletter, compiling detailed reports explaining specific conservation issues and problems, and providing information to, and working with, the news media to further educate the public about these issues. As a result, Defenders' members regularly comment on proposed agency actions affecting wildlife and biological diversity.
- 18. The FWS's unlawful promulgation of a regulation that permits the direct taking of endangered, scimitar-horned oryx, addax, and dama gazelle, as well as other activities that are otherwise prohibited by section 9 of the ESA, injures Defenders and its members. By creating a blanket exemption from the process mandated by section 10 of the ESA, defendants have violated Defenders' and its members' statutory right to obtain the information mandated for "each" application for a section 10 permit, and they have denied Defenders and its members the opportunity to participate in that process, to which they are also entitled under section 10. As a

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY
AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

1	result, Defenders will neither be able to be keep its members fully informed concerning the
2	trophy hunting, transportation, sale, and export of scimitar-horned oryx, addax, and dama gazelle
3	for commercial purposes, because defendants are depriving Defenders of its ability to obtain and
4 5	disseminate through its action alerts, newsletter, and website, nor will Defenders or its members
6	have the opportunity to provide information to the FWS concerning such activities. Defenders
7	and its members are also harmed by defendant's actions, because Defenders will have to spend
8	financial and other resources pursuing alternative sources of information regarding actions taken
9	with respect to these antelope species when such information should be made readily available to
10	the public under section 10 of the ESA. Defenders' injuries will be redressed if plaintiffs prevail,
12	because, as a result, the FWS will be required under section 10 of the ESA to publish in the
13	Federal Register each application for an exemption regarding the antelopes, and Defenders will
14	receive such notice, as well as an opportunity to comment on each such application, and it will
15	also receive notice of the FWS's "findings" as required by section 10, before the agency issues
1617	any such permit. Such a ruling will also ensure that Defenders will not have to dedicate its
18	resources to finding alternative ways to obtain such information.
19	19. Plaintiff the Kimya Institute ("Kimya") is a Northern California-based non-profit
20	animal welfare organization that was founded to improve the standards of care for captive wild
2122	animals, and to promote awareness of the growing trade in wild animals. Kimya's primary
23	function is to manage the Captive Wild Animal Protection Coalition ("CWAPC") – a coalition of
24	animal protection groups, zoo professionals, and sanctuary operators working to bring an end to
25	the trade in wild animals as pets, and to improve the standards of care for captive wild animals.
26	

1	As a result of managing CWAPC, Kimya spends time monitoring proposals by various federal,			
2	state, and local governmental agencies that affect wild animals in captivity, obtaining information			
3	on such proposals, and informing the coalition and its members about these proposals through			
4	the CWAPC website. Kimya also submits comment letters, petitions, and other responses to			
5				
6	these proposals to various governmental entities with jurisdiction over wild animals in captivity.			
7	20. The FWS's unlawful promulgation of a regulation that permits the direct taking of			
8	endangered, scimitar-horned oryx, addax, and dama gazelle, as well as other activities that are			
9	otherwise prohibited by section 9 of the ESA, injures Kimya and its members. By creating a			
10	blanket exemption from the process mandated by section 10 of the ESA, defendants have			
11				
12	violated Kimya's and its members' statutory right to obtain information mandated for "each"			
13	application for a section 10 permit, and they have denied Kimya and its members the opportunity			
14	to participate in that process to which they are also entitled under section 10. As a result, Kimya			
1516	will not be able to be keep its members fully informed concerning the trophy hunting and canned			
17	hunting, transportation, sale, and export of scimitar-horned oryx, addax, and dama gazelle for			
18	commercial purposes because defendants are depriving Kimya of its ability to obtain and			
19	disseminate this information through its action alerts, newsletter, and website, nor will Kimya or			
20	its members have the opportunity to provide information to the FWS concerning such activities.			
21				
22	Kimya's injuries will be redressed if plaintiffs prevail, because, as a result, the FWS will be			
23	required under section 10 of the ESA to publish in the Federal Register each application for an			
24	exemption regarding these antelope species, and Kimya will receive such notice, as well as an			
25				
26				
27	COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY EVANS & PAGE			
28	AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 1 Market St., Spear Tower, S. 3600 -16- San Francisco, C.A. 94105			

-17-

AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

28

1	22. The FWS's unlawful promulgation of a regulation that permits the direct taking of
2	endangered, scimitar-horned oryx, addax, and dama gazelle, as well as other activities that are
3	otherwise prohibited by section 9 of the ESA, injures Born Free and its members. By creating a
5	blanket exemption from the process mandated by section 10 of the ESA, defendants have
6	violated Born Free's and its members' statutory right to obtain the information mandated for
7	"each" application for a section 10 permit, and they have denied Born Free and its members the
8	opportunity to participate in that process to which they are also entitled under section 10. As a
9	result, Born Free will not be able to be keep its members fully informed concerning the trophy
11	hunting and canned hunting, transportation, sale, and export of scimitar-horned oryx, addax, and
12	dama gazelle for commercial purposes, because defendants are depriving Born Free of its ability
13	to obtain and disseminate this information through its action alerts, newsletter, and website, nor
14	will Born Free or its members have the opportunity to provide information to the FWS
1516	concerning such activities. Born Free and its members are also harmed by defendant's actions,
17	because Born Free must spend financial and other resources pursuing alternative sources of
18	information regarding actions taken with respect to the antelopes, when such information should
19	be made readily available to the public under section 10 of the ESA. Born Free's injuries will be
20	redressed if it prevails, because, as a result, the FWS will be required under section 10 of the
2122	ESA to publish in the Federal Register each application for an exemption regarding the
23	antelopes, and Born Free will receive such notice, as well as an opportunity to comment on each
24	such application, and it will also receive notice of the FWS's "findings" as required by section 10
25	
26	
27	L COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY FVANS & PAGE

-19-

1 Market St., Spear Tower, S. 3600 San Francisco, C.A. 94105

1	these species are harmed by the FWS's new exemption for captive-bred antelopes, which
2	undermines true conservation efforts for these species – such as those to which Dr. Clark is
3	devoted. Based on his professional expertise and experience, Dr. Clark believes that sport
5	hunting is one of the primary factors that has contributed, and continues to contribute, to the
6	decline of these species in the wild, and that sending the signal that hunting of these imperiled
7	animals in the U.S. is acceptable will only result in additional hunters traveling to these species'
8	native ranges in order to obtain a trophy from the wild. As a result, the conservation efforts by
9	the range countries, including those in which Dr. Clark is involved, will be further impeded, as
10 11	will the concomitant opportunities to view these already greatly imperiled animals in the wild,
12	including Dr. Clark's own such opportunities. Dr. Clark's injuries will be redressed if plaintiffs
13	prevail, because the broad exemption for captive-bred antelopes will be set aside, and hence will
14	not risk further decline of the species in the wild, nor dilute legitimate conservation efforts in
1516	which he and others are involved.
17	25. Defendant Dale Hall is the Director of the Fish and Wildlife Service and has been
18	delegated responsibility by the Secretary of the Department of the Interior for ensuring
19	compliance with the Endangered Species Act, 16 U.S.C. § 1531 et seq., and the National
20	Environmental Policy Act ("NEPA"), 42 U.S.C. § 4321 et seq.
2122	26. Defendant Gale Norton is the Secretary of the Department of the Interior and has
23	ultimate authority for decisions issued under the ESA and NEPA.
24	
25	

27

STATUTORY FRAMEWORK AND FACTS GIVING RISE TO PLAINTIFFS' CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

A. Statutory and Regulatory Framework

1. The Endangered Species Act

- 27. The ESA was enacted because of Congress' concern that species of fish, wildlife, and plants "have been so depleted in numbers that they are in danger of or threatened with extinction." 16 U.S.C. § 1531(a). The statute pledges the United States "as a sovereign state in the international community to conserve to the extent practicable the various species of fish and wildlife and plants facing extinction," and it provides that "all Federal departments and agencies shall seek to conserve endangered species and threatened species and shall utilize their authorities in furtherance of the purposes of [the Act]." 16 U.S.C. § 1531(c).
- 28. Under the ESA "conserve" and "conservation" mean "the use of all methods and procedures which are necessary to bring any endangered species . . . to the point at which the measures provided pursuant to this chapter are no longer necessary." 16 U.S.C. § 1532(3). The Act provides that such methods may include the "regulated taking" of endangered species only "in the extraordinary case where population pressures within a given ecosystem cannot be otherwise relieved." Id.
- 29. The ESA defines an "endangered species" as "any species which is in danger of extinction." 16 U.S.C. § 1532(6).
- 30. A species must be listed as endangered if the Service finds that "any one or a combination of the following factors" are present: "(1) present or threatened destruction, modification, or curtailment of [the species'] habitat or range;" (2) "overutilization for COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY EVANS & PAGE

27 COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY
AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

-23-

San Francisco, C.A. 94105

- 40. On December 27, 1993, the FWS further amended the definition of "enhance the propagation or survival" to make clear that the Captive-bred Wildlife program is available only to entities engaged in legitimate breeding programs. 58 Fed. Reg. 68323, 68325 (December 27, 1993). The Captive-Bred Wildlife program does not allow entities to kill endangered species for trophies, nor to transport dead animals or their parts in interstate or foreign commerce for commercial gain.
- 41. Section 7(a)(2) of the ESA requires that, "in consultation with and with the Assistance of the [Service]," each federal agency shall "insure that any action authorized, funded or carried out by such agency . . . is not likely to jeopardize the continued existence of any endangered species" 16 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2). This requirement applies unless the Service has determined in writing that the proposed action "is not likely to adversely affect" a listed species.
- 42. During consultation, the Service must consider "the best scientific and commercial data available . . . for an adequate review of the effects" the action may have on listed species. 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(d). The Service must review the information it receives during consultations and all other relevant information, evaluate the status of the listed species, and issue a "biological opinion" detailing "how the agency action affects the species," 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b)(3)(A), and concluding whether the action is "likely to jeopardize" the continued existence of the species in violation of section 7. 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(g), (h). If the action will result in a "take" of a listed species, the action may not go forward unless the Service issues an "incidental take" statement, which allows the "take" of a limited number of the species, if the

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY
AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

- 92. Sport hunting organizations and their members submitted comment letters to the FWS opposing the listing of these species as endangered on the grounds that the listing would prohibit the trophy hunting of these animals in the United States. For example, the Exotic Wildlife Association wrote that owners of ranches "will start discontinuing their breeding programs with these species if listing is instituted," because of the paperwork necessary to register under the Captive-Bred Wildlife program, or to apply for permits under section 10 for the sale of sport hunted trophies, which make it more difficult to profit from these antelope species.
- 93. In response, on February 1, 2005, the FWS issued a notice in the Federal Register of a proposed rule that would exempt the scimitar-horned oryx, addax, and dama gazelle, that are captive-bred in the United States, from certain prohibitions in section 9 of the ESA, if the species were listed as endangered under the Act ("Section 10 Exemption"). 70 Fed. Reg. 5,117. The FWS invited the public to comment on the proposed exemption.
- 94. Specifically, the proposed Section 10 Exemption would allow any person under U.S. jurisdiction to "take; export or re-import; deliver, receive, carry, transport or ship in interstate or foreign commerce, in the course of a commercial activity; or sell or offer for sale in interstate or foreign commerce live wildlife, including embryos and gametes, and sport-hunted trophies of" the scimitar-horned oryx, addax, and dama gazelle without a separate section 10 permit when: 1) the activity "associated with the transfer" "contributes to increasing or sustaining captive population numbers or to potential reintroduction to range countries," 2) the animal was captive bred, 3) the export of the animals complies with the FWS's existing regulations, 4) the re-imported animal has a unique tattoo or other approved documentation, and

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY
AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

1	horned oryx, addax, and dama gazelle without a permit under section 10 of the ESA. 70 Fed.				
2	Reg. at 52,318. In order to do so, the person must demonstrate that: 1) the "activity is associated				
3 4	with the management or transfer of live wildlife, including embryos and gametes, or sport				
5	hunting in a manner that contributes to increasing or sustaining captive numbers or to potential				
6	reintroduction to range countries," 2) the animal "was captive-bred," 3) the animals are				
7	"managed in a manner that prevents hybridization of the species or subspecies," 4) the animals				
8	are "managed in a manner that maintains genetic diversity," 5) the export of the animals complies				
9	with existing regulations at 50 C.F.R. §§ 17.21(g)(4), 13, 14, & 23, 6) re-imported animals are				
1	'uniquely identified by a tattoo" or other documented mark, 7) the person maintains "accurate				
2	written records of activities and makes those records accessible to Service officials for				
3	inspection," and 8) sport-hunted trophies only include "raw or tanned parts, such as bones, hair,				
4	head, hide, hooves, horns, meat, skull, rug, taxidermied head, shoulder, or full body mount, of a				
5	specimen that was taken by the hunter during a sport hunt for personal use." Id. at 52.318-319.				
16 17	100 The FWC fell-14				
8	enhancement of the survival of the antelopes in the wild.				
9	109. The FWS failed to provide any evidence that sport-hunting of these endangered				
20 21	antelopes in captivity relieves hunting pressures on the animals in the wild.				
22	110 The FWS failed to explain how the act of killing an endangered scimitar-horned				
23					
24	of the species in the wild.				
25					
26					
27 28	COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF EVANS & PAGE 1 Market St., Spear Tower, S. 3600 San Francisco, C.A. 94105				

-40-

San Francisco, C.A. 94105

28

Ī				
1	:1		-4 C	
	impiementing	g regulations, and the requiremen	ats of s	section 7 of the ESA and NEPA;
2	(4)	awarding plaintiffs their costs	and re	asonable attorneys' fees; and
3	(5)	awarding plaintiffs any other r	elief tl	nat the Court may deem just and proper.
4				
5				Respectfully submitted,
6				
7				Corey Evans
8				(CA Bar No. 218789)
9				
10				Geneva Page
11				(CA Bar No. 23563)
12				Evans & Page
13				One Market Street
14				Spear Tower Suite 3600
15				San Francisco, C.A. 94105
16				(415) 293.8592
17				
18				KATHERINE A. MEYER
19				(D.C. Bar No. 244301)
20				T
21				TANYA SANERIB (D.C. Bar No. 473506)
22				Meyer Glitzenstein & Crystal
23				1601 Connecticut Ave., N.W.
24				Suite 700 Washington, D.C. 20009
25				(202) 588.5206
26	Date: Octobe	er 26, 2005		
27	COMPLAINT	FOR DECLARATORY		Evans & Page
28		CTIVE RELIEF	-42-	1 Market St., Spear Tower, S. 3600 San Francisco, C.A. 94105

CERTIFICATION OF INTERESTED ENTITIES OR PERSONS Pursuant to Civil L.R. 3-16, the undersigned certifies that as of this date, other than the named parties, there is no such interest to report. COREY EVANS (CA Bar No. 218789) EVANS & PAGE One Market Street Spear Tower **Suite 3600** San Francisco, C.A. 94105 (415) 293.8592 Date: October 26, 2005 EVANS & PAGE COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY 1 Market St., Spear Tower, S. 3600 AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF San Francisco, C.A. 94105 -43-